

GENESYS

This PDF is generated from authoritative online content, and is provided for convenience only. This PDF cannot be used for legal purposes. For authoritative understanding of what is and is not supported, always use the online content. To copy code samples, always use the online content.

Composer Help

Input Block

Input Block

Contents

- 1 Input Block
 - 1.1 Input Block Exception Events
 - 1.2 Name Property
 - 1.3 Block Notes Property
 - 1.4 Exceptions Property
 - 1.5 Language Property
 - 1.6 Condition Property
 - 1.7 Logging Details Property
 - 1.8 Log Level Property
 - 1.9 Enable Status Property
 - 1.10 Output Result Property
 - 1.11 Clear Buffer Property
 - 1.12 Interruptible Property
 - 1.13 Prompts Property
 - 1.14 Security Property
 - 1.15 Timeout Property
 - 1.16 Grammar Type Property
 - 1.17 Input Grammar Dtmf Property
 - 1.18 Input Grammar Voice Property
 - 1.19 Input Mode Property
 - 1.20 Slot Property
 - 1.21 Input Termination Character Property
 - 1.22 Inter Digit Timeout Property
 - 1.23 Maximum Input Digits Property
 - 1.24 Minimum Input Digits Property
 - 1.25 Get Shadow Variables Property
 - 1.26 Number Of Retries Allowed Property
 - 1.27 Retry Prompts Property

- 1.28 Use Last Reprompt Indefinitely Property
- 1.29 Use Original Prompts Property
- 1.30 Use Single Counter For Nomatch And Noinput Property

The Input block accepts DTMF or speech input from callers. It differs from the Menu block in that it enables taking input that might not belong to a simple choice list (as for the Menu block). It can be used to collect numerical data; for example, phone numbers, account numbers, amounts, or speech data, such as a Stock name. It uses speech or DTMF grammars to define the allowable input values for the user responses. Built-in system grammars are available for data, such as dates and amount.

Important

Built-in grammars may not be available for all languages. If you specify a language other than U.S. English and refer to an unsupported built-in grammar, a parse error error.unsupported.builtin will be thrown.

In case of user input blocks (Menu, Input, Record, Transfer), Composer adds a global variable of type "Block" to the variables list. You can conveniently use this variable for accessing the user input value. Also see Menu Block, Number of Allowed Attempts Exceeded. The Input block has the following properties:

Input Block Exception Events

The Input block has eight exception events:

- error
- error.noresource
- maxspeechtimeout
- noinput
- nomatch
- error.badfetch.grammar.uri
- error.badfetch.grammar.syntax
- error.badfetch.grammar.load

Name Property

Please find this property's details under Common Properties.

Block Notes Property

Can be used for both callflow and workflow blocks to add comments.

Exceptions Property

Find this property's details under Common Properties.

Language Property

The language set by this property overrides any language set by the Set Language block, the Project preferences, or the incoming call parameters. The property takes effect only for the duration of this block, and the language setting reverts back to its previous state after the block is done. In the case of the Input block, this property affects the language of grammars of TTS output:

- 1. Click under Value to display a down arrow.
- 2. Click the down arrow and select English United States (en-US) or the variable that contains the language.

Condition Property

Find this property's details under Common Properties for Callflow Blocks.

Logging Details Property

Find this property's details under Common Properties for Callflow Blocks.

Log Level Property

Find this property's details under Common Properties for Callflow Blocks.

Enable Status Property

Find this property's details under Common Properties for Callflow Blocks.

Output Result Property

You must use the Output Result property to assign the collected data to a user-defined variable for further processing.

Important

This property is mandatory. You must select a variable for the output result even if you do not plan on using the variable. If this is not done, a validation error will be generated in the Problems view.

- 1. Select the Output Result row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, click the down arrow and select a variable.

For more information, see Upgrading Projects/Diagrams.

Clear Buffer Property

Use the Clear Buffer property for clearing the DTMF digits in the key-ahead buffer. If it is not set to true, the DTMF digits entered are carried forward to the next block. It is commonly used for applications with multiple menus, enabling the caller to key ahead the DTMF digits corresponding to the menu choices. To assign a value to the Clear Buffer property:

- 1. Select the Clear Buffer row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select true or false from the drop-down list.

Interruptible Property

This property specifies whether the caller can interrupt the prompt before it has finished playing. To assign a value to the Interruptible property:

- 1. Select the Interruptible row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select true, false, or DTMF (for DTMF barge-in mode support) from the drop-down list.

Prompts Property

Find this property's details under Common Properties.

Important

When Type is set to Value and Interpret-As is set to Audio, you can specify an HTTP or RTSP URL. When Type is set to Variable and Interpret-As is set to Audio, you can specify a variable that contains an HTTP or RTSP URL. Starting with 8.1.410.14,

validation displays a warning message if a resource file or URL does not exist.

Security Property

When the Security property is set to true, data for this block is treated as private. GVP will consider the data associated with this block as sensitive and will suppress it in platform logs and metrics. Composer uses the com.genesyslab.private property for the Security property of callflow blocks. For more information see the GVP 8.1 Voice XML Help.

To assign a value to the Security property:

- 1. Select the Security row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select true or false from the drop-down list.

Timeout Property

The Timeout property defines the length of the pause between when the voice application plays the last data in the list, and when it moves to the next block. To provide a timeout value:

- 1. Select the Timeout row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, type a timeout value, in seconds.

Grammar Type Property

To assign a value to the Grammar Type property:

- 1. Select the Grammar Type row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select one of the following from the drop-down list:
 - builtinBoolean
 - builtinCurrency
 - builtinDate
 - builtinDigits
 - builtinNumber
 - builtinPhone
 - builtinTime
 - externalGrammar

Important

All the builtinXXX selections are grammars that are provide by the platform or the ASR Engine. Built-in grammar support for locales other than U.S. English is dependent on the ASR vendor. Before using this feature, make sure that your ASR Engine supports built-in grammars for your locale. This feature has the following critical prerequisites: The ASR Engine must support built-in grammars for that language. Contact your ASR Vendor for details. If the ASR Engine supports the language you want to use, then you must install the Language Pack for that language on the GVP Server.

builtinBoolean

Valid inputs include affirmative and negative phrases appropriate to the current locale. DTMF 1 represents " yes," and 2 represents "no." The result is ECMAScript true for yes or false for no. The value is submitted as the string true or the string false.

builtinCurrency

Valid spoken inputs include phrases that specify a currency amount. For DTMF input, the asterisk (*) character acts as the decimal point. The result is either a string with the format UUUmm.nn, where UUU is the three-character currency indicator according to ISO standard 4217:1995, or null if not spoken by the caller.

builtinDate

Valid spoken inputs include phrases that specify a date, including a month, day, and year. DTMF inputs are: four digits for the year, followed by two digits for the month, and then two digits for the day. The result is a fixed-length date string with format yyyymmdd--for example, 20000704. If the year is not specified, yyyy is returned as ????; if the month is not specified mm is returned as ??; and if the day is not specified dd is returned as ??.

builtinDigits

Valid spoken or DTMF inputs include one or more digits, 0--9. The result is a string of digits.

builtinNumber

Valid spoken inputs include phrases that specify numbers--for example, one hundred twenty-three, or five point three. Valid DTMF input includes positive numbers entered using digits and the star (*) character (to represent a decimal point). The result is a string of digits from 0-9 and that can optionally include a decimal point (.), and/or a plus sign (+) or minus sign (-).

builtinPhone

Valid spoken inputs include phrases that specify a phone number. DTMF star (*) represents x. The result is a string that contains a telephone number consisting of a string of digits and optionally, the

character x to indicate a phone number with an extension--for example, 8005551234x789."

builtinTime

Valid spoken inputs include phrases that specify a time, including hours and minutes. The result is a five-character string in the format hhmmx, where x is either a for AM, p for PM, h to indicate a time specified according to the 24-hour clock, or ? to indicate an ambiguous time. Because there is no DTMF convention for specifying AM/PM, in the case of DTMF input, the result is always end with h or ?. If the field value is subsequently used in a prompt, the value is spoken as a time appropriate to the current locale.

externalGrammar

The application can also define an external grammar. The grammars can be written using the GRXML Editor, or GRXML files can be imported into the Composer Project. Look at the User Input Project voice application template in Composer for an example of the use of an external grammar file. **Note for Voice Application Developers** When developing a VoiceXML application, you must set the web server connection timeout so that it is appropriate to the task that the application performs. It should be greater than one or all of the following callflow applications:

- Maximum talk time
- Maximum recording time
- Maximum wait time for a user input

Input Grammar Dtmf Property

Important

Multiple grammars by using "|" is supported only when literal values are used and not for expressions and variables. Also, the grammar file URI must be specified within single quotes.

Use the Input Grammar Dtmf (Dual Tone Multi-Frequency as described below) property to specify the DTMF Grammar for the Input Block. The DTMF Grammar is processed and handled by GVP. In the case of external grammars, this specifies the actual path of the grammar file / resource for DTMF Grammars. This is only valid when the Grammar Type is externalGrammar and Input Mode is dtmf or hybrid. To assign a value to the Input Grammar Dtmf property:

- 1. Select the Input Grammar Dtmf row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select a value from the drop-down list. >br>

Values are the Voice Application Variables described under the Variables property. You can specify multiple grammars by separating the grammars with the "|" character.

Multiple Inputs:

Expression Builder		×
inputGrammarDtmf		
Build an expression in the Expression field by selecting t categories and subcategories below.	the operator(s) and data element	(3) from the
Copy Cut Paste Delete Undo Redo	Validate	
Expression field		type filter text
1 locations.gnmt/services.gnmt		Califice variables Califice variables Califice variables Califice variables Califice variables Calification of the color of
¢.	>	
Row:1 Column:1		
٢		OK Cancel
v User Input		
v User Input Grammar Type	12 externalGramm	M
User Input Grammar Type Input Grammar Donf Input Grammar Union	externalGramm 10cations.gram	ar Jienvices.gozmi"
 User Input Grammar Type Input Grammar Dtmf Input Grammar Voice 	external@camm	ar (services.gom?
User Input Grammar Type Input Grammar Donf Input Grammar Voice Input Mode Con	externalGramm Docations.gramm	ar (xervices.gxml [*]
Viser Input Grammar Type Input Grammar Donf Input Grammar Uoire Input Grammar Voice Input Mode Siot Siot Siot	erdemalGramm Dications.grami dtmf	ar Juenices.grxmi ^r

Single Input:

Apres 10	ammar01ml		
Build at You not	expression in the Expression field by selection a site type an expression directly into the Exp	ng the operator(c) and resolve field.	I data etement(c) from the categories and subsattegories below.
il di	E Parte Undo Redo	Verlage	
-	a field		too file too
()ocat			I C Californet examine C Californet examine D Van Function
- 	krect		
	kred		y T OX Caner
	enet -		y y y
	event – State Event Sate		Cause
D D	w Satus Evalte Satus = Line Ingul		Deales
-10 D	- State Date State - Lee Syste General Syst		Dested Dested Dested
-10 D	- Sana Data Data - Dat Sana - Dat Sana - Dat Sana - Dat Sana - Dat Sana		DX Canad Const
	v Tatas Estis Sata - Dati Sata - Dati Sata - Dati Sata - Dati Sata - Dati Sata - Dati Sata		Dates Dates Societaria
			DX Career Training of the second sec
	v Tatas Data Data Data Data Data Data		Demos Second Sec
me10	4- Stress Dokto Barka - Line Stype Hand Serverse Hove Bark Data Serverse Hove Bark - Line Tang Dagts		Cause Conset
t and G	v State Della Della Della Della Della Della via Topol Gonnes fina Repd Stanse fina Repd State Sa via Tipad Della via Tipad Della via Tipad Della via Tipad Della		Dealer Conver Posting and dand and and and and and an

About Dual Tone Multi Frequency (DTMF) Signaling

DTMF signaling is used for telecommunication signaling over analog telephone lines in the voicefrequency band between telephone handsets and other communications devices and the switching center. The version of DTMF used for telephone tone dialing is known by the trademarked term, Touch-Tone. There are some situations where the interpreter (NGI) cannot accept DTMF keypresses immediately as input. In these situations, the keypresses are stored in the DTMF input buffer, for possible later use as input. Throughout the execution of the application, the interpreter must decide whether to save the current contents of the DTMF input buffer (and use them at the next input state), or to discard them. Buffering DTMF input can be useful in allowing typeahead, where users input DTMF for multiple fields rapidly, separated by the termchar. Whatever input is left after the first termchar, may be used in subsequent fields, meaning that the user does not have to wait to hear each prompt.

Input Grammar Voice Property

Important

Multiple grammars by using "|" is supported only when literal values are used and not for expressions and variables. Also, the grammar file URI must be specified within single quotes.

Use the Input Grammar Voice property to specify the Voice Grammar for the Input block. If you are writing hybrid applications that allow both DTMF and Speech input, specify both the DTMF and Voice grammars. The Voice Grammar is sent to the ASR Engine for processing, whereas the DTMF grammar is processed by GVP. As a result, you need two separate grammars for Voice and DTMF in the case of hybrid applications that allow both Voice and DTMF inputs. In the case of external grammars, this specifies the actual path of the grammar file / resource for ASR Grammars. This is only valid when Grammar Type is externalGrammar and Input Mode is voice or hybrid. To assign a value to the Input Grammar Voice property:

- 1. Select the Input Grammar Voice row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select a value from the drop-down list. You can specify multiple grammars by separating the grammars with the "|" character.

Values are the Voice Application Variables described under the Variables Property.

Multiple Inputs:



Single Input:

🗶 (oper	sion Ballder				×
inputtin	amonar Visica				
Build an You may	expression in the Expression field by select also type at expression directly into the Ex-	og the operator(3) and d pression field.	ata dementis from the categories and	ubangale	brins.
Depy Cat	Parte Delete Unite Rode	15 Validate			
lapane in	- Taild				tope lifer text
1) and a	enel .				Dear Dearnet andee Dearnet andee
œ					OK Canori
œ	- 5984				OK. Ganoel
۲	- Status Dealine Status		*Crashed		OK Ganor
۲	- Status Loadie Status - Uker Roud		* balled		OK Ganoel
æ	- Status Durito Status - Uno Topul Gammar Type		* Entitled		OK Canor
۲	- Status Evalue Status - Unor Reput Gaurenar Type Reput Gaurenar Coart		¹⁰ (native) ¹⁰ entemplitaneme		OK Gavor
۲	- Some Dable Status - Une Ispat Gorennar Type Ispat Genemar Steel Ispat Genemar Steel		¹⁰ Crasted ¹⁰ extens Coverus ¹⁰ "scations prim"	_	OK Ganor
٣	- Status Dedire Status - Uher Ryad Genemar Type Inyad Disemar Steel Inyad Disemar Steel Inyad Disemar Steel		¹⁰ Crubbel ¹⁰ extens/Covenue ¹⁰ focations prov ² ¹⁰ Soci		OK Genos
œ	- Sonu Doaline Status - Ubar Royal Gaummar Tipte Input Stannar State Royal Studie Stat		 Coster Coster		OK Gener
œ	- Status Evalue Status - Uhar Ingut Gaussian Tape Ingut Gaussian Stat Ingut Gaussian Stat Ingut Walah Stat - Thar Ingut Dight		¹⁰ Ended ¹⁰ extense Samme ¹⁰ Ventions port ¹⁰ recto ¹⁰		OK Genet
٢	 Status User lipste User lipst General fister General fister Input Seamue (beet lipst) Input Status Input Status User lipst User lipst User lipst Status 		Costiled Costiles Costiles provi Micro Mi		04 Genor

Input Mode Property

To assign a value to the Input Mode property:

- 1. Select the Input Mode row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select one of the following from the drop-down list:
 - dtmf
 - voice
 - hybrid

DTMF

The DTMF format indicates the menu option mode of input will be via the telephone keypad.

Voice

The Voice format indicates the menu option mode of input will be a voice phrase.

Hybrid

The Hybrid menu mode will handle both DTMF and Voice inputs, that is via telephone keypad and voice phrase.

Slot Property

The Slot property enables you to specify the slot name of the return value from the grammar. If the slot name is not specified, it is assumed that the grammar will return the value of a slot having the same name as the INPUT block itself. To provide a slot name:

- 1. Select the Slot row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, type a slot name that conforms to the restrictions above.

Input Termination Character Property

The Input Termination Character property defines any character that callers can input in order to indicate that they have finished entering data. For example, the prompt given to the caller may say "Enter your account number, and then press the pound key." The pound key is the input-ending character. To provide a value for the input termination character:

- 1. Select the Input Termination Character row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, type a value for a character to represent the end of the input string.

A typical value that is often used, as indicated above, is: # Example:

To use # or * then type the value as # or *

Warning

Only 1 character can be used as the termination character.

Inter Digit Timeout Property

The Inter Digit Timeout property defines the longest wait time between input characters before a timeout is generated. This is mandatory if dtmf is selected as the Input Mode. Note: Inter Digit Timeout property is applicable only for DTMF input. To provide an Inter Digit timeout value:

- 1. Select the Inter Digit Timeout row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, type a timeout value, in seconds.

Maximum Input Digits Property

Tip

This property only applies if the builtinDigits grammar is selected.

The Maximum Input Digits property defines the maximum number of characters that the caller may input. If the input is variable, an input character such as pound sign (#) should be used to terminate the input. This is mandatory if dtmf is selected as the Input Mode. To provide a value for the maximum number of input digits:

- 1. Select the Maximum Input Digits row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, type a value for the maximum number of input digits.

Minimum Input Digits Property

Tip

This property only applies if the builtinDigits grammar is selected.

The Minimum Input Digits property defines the minimum number of characters that the caller must input. This is mandatory if dtmf is selected as the Input Mode. To provide a value for the minimum number of input digits:

- 1. Select the Minimum Input Digits row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, type a value for the minimum number of input digits.

Get Shadow Variables Property

Shadow variables (optional) provide a way to retrieve further information regarding the value of an input item. By setting this property to true, it will expose the block's shadow variable within the callflow. When enabled, the shadow variable will be included in the list of available variables. (For example, the Log block's Logging Details will show Input1\$.) A shadow variable is referenced as blockname\$.shadowVariable, where blockname is the value of the input item's name attribute, and shadowVariable is the name of a specific shadow variable, for example: Input1\$.duration. Shadow variables can provide platform-related information about the interaction/input. For example, for speech recognition, this may be the confidence level the platform receives from the ASR engine about how closely the engine could match the user utterance to specified grammar. To assign a value to the Get Shadow Variables property:

- 1. Select the Get Shadow Variables row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select true or false from the drop-down list.

Number Of Retries Allowed Property

The Number Of Retries Allowed property determines how many opportunities the user will be provided to re-enter the value. If Use Last Prompt Indefinitely is set to true, this property has no effect; otherwise, the error.com.genesyslab.composer.toomanynomatches or error.com.genesyslab.composer.toomanynoinputs errors will be raised on reaching the maximum retry limit. To provide a value for the number of retries allowed:

- 1. Select the Number Of Retries Allowed row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, type a value for the number of retries that will be allowed.

Retry Prompts Property

Find this property's details under Common Properties.

Use Last Reprompt Indefinitely Property

If you set the Use Last Reprompt Indefinitely property to true, the application uses your last reprompt as the prompt for all further retries. In this case the NoMatch and NoInput exception handlers will never get executed, as the retry loop keeps executing forever. To assign a value to the Use Last Reprompt Indefinitely property:

- 1. Select the Use Last Reprompt Indefinitely row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select true or false from the drop-down list.

Use Original Prompts Property

If you set the Use Original Prompts property to true, in the event of an error requiring a retry, the application first plays back the retry error prompt, and then plays back the original prompt for the block (as specified in the Prompts property). To assign a value to the Use Original Prompts property:

- 1. Select the Use Original Prompts row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select true or false from the drop-down list.

Use Single Counter For Nomatch And Noinput Property

If you set the Use Single Counter For Nomatch And Noinput property to true, the application maintains a single combined counter for the nomatch and noinput errors. For example, if the block has three nomatch retry messages and three noinput retry messages, the user gets three retry attempts. If you do not select this option, the application generates a total of six retries; and the user gets up to six retry attempts while not exceeding three of each type -- noinput or nomatch.

Tip

This property not available on the Record block.

To assign a value to the Use Single Counter For Nomatch And Noinput property:

- 1. Select the Use Single Counter For Nomatch And Noinput row in the block's property table.
- 2. In the Value field, select true or false from the drop-down list.